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City: Leonardtown Zip Code: 20650 County: Saint Mary's
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Property Owner: ~ Mary Helen Saunders Tax Account ID Number:  03-021815
Tax Map Parcel Number(s): 70 Tax Map Number: 127
Project: } MD 5: MD 243 to MD 245 Agency: SHA

Agency Prepared By:  EHT Trgccries:_ Inc.
Preparer's Name: Saleh Van Erem Date Prepared: 10/30/2007

Documentation is presented in:

Preparer's Eligibility Recommendation: X Eligibility recommended Eligibility not recommended

Criteria: X A B XC D Considerations: A B C D E F G
Complete if the property is a contributing or non-contributing resource to a NR district/property:

Name of the District/Property:
Inventory Number: Eligible: yes Listed: yes

ite visit by MHT Staff yes X no Name: Date:

Description of Property and Justification:  (Please attach map and photo)

The Drury-Saunders House, located at 22915 Hollywood Road, is sited on a sloping lot at the northwest corner of Point Lookout
Road (MD 5) and Hollywood Road (MD 245). Vacant lots are located to the north and west of the property. The dwelling is
surrounded by mature trees and shrubs. A circular paved driveway wraps around the dwelling, accessible from Hollywood Road
and Point Lookout Road. A garage is located northwest of the dwelling. '

The two-and-a-half-story, three-bay Drury-Saunders House was constructed circa 1900 in the Queen Anne style. The ornate
building has a T-shaped plan with multiple rear additions constructed in the early twentieth century. Set on an all-stretcher-bond
brick foundation, the main block of the wood-frame dwelling is clad in weatherboard siding on the first story and vinyl siding on
the second story. The structure has two interior chimneys of brick construction. A cross gable roof covered in asphalt shingles caps
the structure. The roof features overhanging eaves, cornice returns, and a vinyl cornice board. The gable ends are clad in fish scale
wood shingles. A one-story, three-bay porch located on the facade (southeast elevation) wraps around to the side elevations. The
porch is capped by a half-hipped roof covered in standing-seam metal. Turned wood posts with gingerbread brackets support the
porch. The porch has been screened-in. The dwelling is fenestrated by 2/2 windows with square-edged wood surrounds and
operable louvered shutters. A single-leaf paneled wood entry door with lights is asymmetrically placed on the fagade. The door
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features two-light sidelights and a three-light transom. Rounded arch 2/2 windows are placed in the gable ends.

A two-story, one-bay shed-roofed addition is located on the north (rear) elevation of the main block. The wood-frame addition is
set on a concrete foundation and is clad in vinyl siding. The addition is fenestrated by 6/6 vinyl-sash windows with vinyl-clad
surrounds. A one-story, one-bay half-hipped addition is located on the northwest (rear) elevation of the main block. Set on a
concrete foundation, the wood-frame addition is clad in vinyl siding. The roof is covered in standing-seam metal. The addition is
fenestrated by 2/2 windows with vinyl-clad surrounds and operable louvered shutters.

A one-story, five bay garage is located northwest of the dwelling. Based on its form and materials, the garage appears to have been
constructed circa 1920. Set on an all-stretcher-bond brick foundation, the wood-frame structure is clad in weatherboard siding. A
side-gabled roof with overhanging eaves is covered in asphalt shingles. Four of the five bays of the garage are inset under the roof
overhang. The garage is fenestrated by two single-leaf paneled wood doors with lights, two roll-up garage doors, a four-light
casement window, and 6/6 windows. All doors and windows have square-edged wood surrounds. Round-arched vents are located
in the gable ends.

The Maryland Legislature established Leonardtown as the county seat of St. Mary’s County in 1708. Located adjacent to the
navigatable Breton Bay, the town grew slowly as an agricultural community and government center. A courthouse was constructed
in 1736, followed by a large private residence in the 1760s known as Tudor Hall (SM-10). Despite these two prominent buildings
in the formally surveyed town plat, much of the early population of the town was dispersed on the immediate surrounding
agricultural landscape. The lack of efficient transportation in and around Leonardtown resulted in the community remaining rural
and small. In the early nineteenth century, paddlewheel steamboats began operating out of Leonardtown (Loker, 2001).
Leonardtown became the first town in St. Mary’s County to become incorporated in 1858.

The period following the Civil War experienced considerable growth in Leonardtown. In 1870, the town included “‘a courthouse, a

jail, two churches, seven stores, two hotels, two oyster houses, three blacksmith shops, one harness shop, two bakeries, and 43

residences,” with a population of almost 400 (Loker, 2001). Late nineteenth and early twentieth century mapping provides a clear
~ picture of the town layout. The USGS 1892 quadrangle shows development concentrated along the north-south road that is today’s
. Main Street. The large tobacco plantations of the county dispersed along with the former slave labor population. Some local
farmers shifted their focus on smaller crops of fruits, vegetables and wheat, while others turned to oystering and fishing from the
nearby bay. In 1885, the wharf at Breton Bay was incorporated, generating maritime business opportunities from steamboats,
while igniting the local economy of Leonardtown. By the early twentieth century, steamships and horse-drawn carriages remained
the most effective transportation option for local residents (Loker, 2001). Train service bypassed the town, and the first major road
to access the town was not constructed until 1910. By 1914, town residents could finally travel efficiently to Washington, D.C. by
road (Loker, 2001).

At the turn of the 20th century, the town was experiencing a period of cohesiveness with a rapidly developing downtown and
community focus. Businesses catered to the new automobile industry, manufacturing facilities were established, electrical and
telephone utilities were installed, and roadways were improved, further facilitating commerce. Residential structures were
constructed on or near Main Street (Washington Street). A new courthouse was constructed to replace the original one that had
since burned down. The construction of several commercial structures along Washington Street in Leonardtown reflects this
period of growth in the early to mid-20th century and the transition from a rural agricultural town to a prosperous commercial and
governmental center. The continued pattern of development along Washington Street is reflected on the USGS (1901) quadrangle
map, and by 1939, the USGS map shows that development in and around the town had expanded considerably.

The twentieth century also brought some significant changes to Leonardtown and the area. The population began to flux, and
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" agricultural land was being developed into residential housing, displacing tenant farmers (Loker, 2001). The population of the

. county doubled in the late 1940s because of the establishment of the U.S. Naval Air Station, located only twelve miles from
Leonardtown on the Patuxent River. World War II veterans returned from the war seeking employment at the air station and low-
cost housing. Leonardtown saw a significant boost in residential development as a result of this increased demand for housing
(Loker, 2001). The population influx and increased construction furthered the transformation of Leonardtown in the twentieth
century from an agricultural village to the governmental, business and residential center that it is today.

The earliest extant buildings in Leonardtown date to the mid-eighteenth century, with the majority of buildings dating from the
later nineteenth to the mid-twentieth centuries. These buildings reflect the agricultural, governmental and commercial history of
the area and illustrate a variety of styles, including Queen Anne, Italianate, Second Empire, Colonial Revival, Craftsman, and a
variety of vernacular interpretations each. Similar to the Drury-Saunders House, the W.W. Sawyer House (SM-365) and the
Ford/Sterling House (SM-343) utilized elements of the popular Queen Anne style, such as asymmetrical massing and decorative
mill work (Ranzetta, SM-592, 1997).

The Drury-Saunders House was constructed circa 1900 for Joseph Benedict and Mary L. Drury. The dwelling is sited on a portion
of a 60-acre tract of land known as "Brooklyn" and "The Race Track."(1) In the early twentieth century, Joseph B. Drury also
constructed a general store on the property. The wood-frame general store had a wide front porch, and was opened in June of 1903.
The store carried all types of items from shoes to fishing rods. In 1924, the property, now only 2.2 acres in size, was sold to Joseph
A. and Mary Helen Saunders.(2) Joseph A. Saunders was a former St. Mary’s County Treasurer and the president of the County
Trust Company in Leonardtown. The Saunders continued to operate Drury’s general store, which became known as "Saunders’
Corner." The store continued operation until 1968 when it was demolished for the widening of Point Lookout Road (MD 5).(3)

The Drury-Saunders House is an architectural expressing of the significant developmental changes Leonardtown underwent during
the turn of the twentieth century. Popular architectural styles began appearing in larger numbers during this time, replacing
vernacular farmhouses dispersed on the landscape. The introduction of mills and skilled contractors capitalizing on the population
increase resulted in more stylistic residential housing stock. Also, as large farms on the periphery of town subdivided into smaller
parcels and tenant farming operations following the Civil War, the population gravitated inward towards the town center on smaller

_10ts as citizens shifted focus from large farming practices to other businesses. The location of the Drury-Saunders House at a
crossroads and just north of downtown places the building at a prominent location, and ideal for the family store that once operated
on “Saunder’s Corner.”

The Drury-Saunders House at 22915 Hollywood Road was constructed circa 1900, during a period of development and a shift
away from large plantations to smaller farms, residential structures clustered on Main Street, family businesses and new industries
in Leonardtown. The location of the house at a crossroads near Main Street and the association of the house with a family-
operated general store contributes to the understanding of development of Leonardtown. This property is considered individually
associated with the events and trends that have made a significant contribution to the broad patterns of Leonardtown’s history, thus
qualifying it for eligibility under Criterion A. The property is not associated with any person or group of persons of outstanding
importance to the community, state, or nation. Therefore, the Drury-Saunders House is not eligible under Criterion B. The
building embodies distinctive characteristics of early twentieth-century residential architecture, and is an excellent example of
Queen Anne style architecture in St. Mary’s County. The house is a good example of the various popular styles constructed in
Leonardtown, marking a time when architectural aesthetics were no longer primarily utilized in civic architecture or for the wealthy
population, but became a preference and more affordable to the residential community. It is thus eligible under Criterion C. The
Drury-Saunders House was not evaluated under Criterion D. Therefore, it has been recommended that the Drury-Saunders House
is eligible for listing in the National Register of Historic Places under Criteria A and C.
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The historic boundary for the Drury-Saunders House includes the house footprint, immediate vegetation surrounding the house
(mature trees and shrubs) and the sidewalk leading from Hollywood Road (MD 245).

1) Kirk E. Ranzetta, "Drury-Saunders House," (SM-540) Maryland Historical Trust State Historic Sites Inventory
Form (1997), 8:1.
2) Dorothy Shannon, "Saunders’ Corner Era Comes To End," The Enterprise (23 May 1968).
3) Aleck Loker, A Most Convenient Place: Leonardtown, Maryland, 1650-1950
(Leonardtown, MD: The Commissioners of Leonardtown and Solitude Press, 2001).
4) Kirk E. Ranzetta, "Leonardtown Survey District," (SM-592) Maryland Historical Trust State Historic Sites Inventory Form

(1997).
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Capsule Summary
SM-540
Drury/Saunders House

Leonardtown
Private c. 1900

Situated at the northwest corner of Jefferson and Washington Streets in Leonardtown, the
Drury/Saunders house represents a significant Queen-Anne style dwelling. The two-story
building, constructed c. 1900s, is located at a commercially strategic position and was once
associated with a corner store. While the store was demolished during the widening of Jefferson
Street (Route 5), the Drury/Saunders house remains to illustrate the diversity of housing plans and
styles open to Leonardtown residents during the late-nineteenth and early-twentieth century.
Today, the building represents the first of several late-nineteenth and early-twentieth century

dwellings that line the northern part of Washington Street.

Initially part of a large 60 acre tract called "Brooklyn" and "The Race Track," the
Drury/Saunders house was constructed by Joseph Benedict and Mary L. Drury c. 1900. Drury,
who also operated a corner store next door, sold the house to its present owners Joseph A. and

Mary Helen Saunders in 1924. By this time the parcel had shrunk to its present size of 2.2 acres.



SM-540, Drury/Saunders House
St. Mary's County
Maryland Comprehensive State Historic Preservation Data

Historic Context
Geographic Organization: Western Shore
Chronological/Developmental Period: Industrial/Urban Dominance
Historic Period Theme: Architecture
Economic
Resource Type
Category: Building
Historic Environment: Town
Historic Function and Use: Residence

Known Design Source: None



MARYLAND INVENTORY OF Survey No. SM-540

Maryland Historical Trust HISTORIC PROPERTIES Magi No.
State Historic Sites Inventory Form DOE _ yes _mo

1. Name (indicate preferred name)

historic  Drury/Saunders House -

and/or common

2. Location

street & number N corner of Route 5 and Route 245 ____not for publication
city, town Leonardtown ___ vicinity of congressional district 3
state  Maryland county St, Mary's
3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use
____district ____ public _X__ occupied ____ agriculture —__ museum
__X building(s) _X__ private — unoccupied ___ commercial — park
__structure __ both _ work in progress ____ educational X private residence
____ site Public Acquisition Accessible _ entertainment __ religious
___object ____in process ___yes: restricted ____ government ___ scientific
— being considered __ yes: unrestricted __ industrial —___transportation
x not applicable X_no military —__other:

4. Owner of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name Mary Helen Saunders

street & number PO Box 127 telephone no.: (301) 475-2360

city, town Leonardtown state and zip code Maryland 20650-0127
5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. St. Mary's County Courthouse liber 16
street & number folio 355
city, town Leonardtown state Maryland

6. Representation in Existing uistorical surveys

title

date — federal __state __county ___ local

2pository for survey records

city, town state




7. Description Survey No. 540

Condition Check one Check one

__ excellent _ deteriorated ___ unaitered _X__ original site

_Xx_ good ____ruins _X_ altered ___ moved date of move
— fair ____ unexposed

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its
various elements as it exists today.

Contributing Resource Count: |

The Drury/Saunders House is located at the intersection of Route 245 (Washington Street)
and Route 5 (Jefferson Avenue) on the northwest corner in LLeonardtown. While bounded on the
east and south by busy roads, the dwelling is also situated beside vacant lots to the west and north.
The house is setback 30" from the road and lies on a flat, grassy lot. The residence repesents the
first of a series of late-nineteenth to early-twentieth century dwellings that line the northern section
of Washington Street.

The Parsons/Drury/Saunders house is a frame, two story, three-bay, Queen-Anne style
dwelling with a common bond brick foundation, and gable roof. Constructed c. 1900, the
building is oriented on a east/west axis with its primary (east) elevation facing Washington Street.
The three bays on the first floor are shaded by a wrap-around, screened-in porch supported on
brick piers and decorated with turned posts and scroll sawn brackets. This elevation features a
gable front sided with clapboard on the first two floors but with fishscale siding on the attic story.
The transition between these two elements is signaled through the use of cornice returns. The attic
story is also adorned by a two-over-two window with a semicircular crown. The gable roof is
sheathed with asphalt shingles and pierced by two, brick chimney flues. Most of the windows are
two-over-two, double-hung sash windows.



8. Significance Survey No. S¥-540

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below

— prehistoric ____ archeology-prehistoric ____ community planning ____ landscape architecture____ religion

—1400-1499 ____ archeology-historic —_conservation — law ____science

1500-1599 ____ agriculture —___economics —literature — sculpture

— 1600-1699 _X architecture — education — military —_social/

—_1700-1799 ____ art —___engineering —___ music humanitarian

18001899 _X commerce — exploration/settlement ____ philosophy — theater

X 1900- —___ communications — industry — politics/government ____ transportation
____invention —_ other (specify)

Specific dates Builder/Architect

check: Applicable Criteria: xA __ B _xC _ D

and/or

Applicable Exception: _ A B C D E F G

Level of Significance: _ natiomal __ state Xlocal

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a general statement of history and
support.

Situated at the northwest corner of Jefferson and Washington Streets in Leonardtown, the
Drury/Saunders house represents a significant Queen-Anne style dwelling. The two-story
building, constructed c. 1900, is located at a commercially strategic position and was once
associated with a corner store. While the store was demolished during the widening of Jefferson
Street (Route 5), the Drury/Saunders house remains to illustrate the diversity of housing plans and
styles open to Leonardtown residents during the late-nineteenth and early-twentieth century.
Today, the building represents the first of several late-nineteenth and early-twentieth century
dwellings that were constructed along the northern part of Washington Street.

Initially part of a large 60 acre tract called "Brooklyn" and "The Race Track," the
Drury/Saunders house was constructed by Joseph Benedict and Mary L. Drury c. 1900. Drury,
who also operated a corner store next door, sold the house to its present owners Joseph A. and
Mary Helen Saunders in 1924. By this time the parcel had shrunk to its present size of 2.2 acres.



9. Major Bibliographical References

Survey No.g¥540

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of nominated property 2.2 acres o
Quadrangle name _Leonardtown

UTM References do NOT complete UTM references
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Verbal boundary description and justification
Same as per deed description.

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state code county

code

state code county

code

11. Form Prepared By

name/title Kirk E. Ranzetta, Historic Sites Surveyor

organization St. Mary's County Planning and Zoning

date January 6, 1997

street & number 328 Washington Street

telephone (301) 475-4662

city or town Leonardtown

state Maryland

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by
an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be found in the Annotated
Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and
record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of
individual property rights.

Maryland Historical T
Shaw House
21 State
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SM-540, The Drury/Saunders House
St. Mary's County
8.1 Significance

Chain of Title
(All deeds are located at the Land Records Office, St. Mary's Courthouse, Leonardtown, Maryland

unless otherwise noted.)

Reference: Liber 16, Folio 355

Grantee: Joseph A. and Mary Helen Saunders

Grantor: Mary R. Fowler

Date: September 27, 1944

Note: This deed notes that two tracts were transferred to the Saunders'. The tract the house sits on
is tract #1 and is 2.2 acres.

Reference: Liber 16, Folio 355

Grantee: Mary R. Fowler

Grantor: Joseph A. and Mary Helen Saunders
Date: September 27, 1944

Reference: Liber JIMM 2, Folio 474

Grantee: Joseph A. and Mary Helen Saunders

Grantor: Joseph B. and Mary L. Drury

Date: December 2, 1924

Note: Named "Part of Brooklyn" and "The Race Track," the tract consists of 2.2 acres. This deed
also references a survey made by Charles A. Heard made on November 26, 1924.

Reference: Liber EBA 1, Folio 388

Grantee: Joseph Benedict Drury

Grantor: Lewis E. and Ida J. Payne

Date: August 21, 1900

Note: While still named "Part of Brooklyn" and "The Race Track," the property now contains 60
acres.

Reference: Liber JIG 5, Folio 358-359

Grantee: L. Ernest Payne

Grantor: Lucy C. Leigh Parsons of Washington, D.C.

Date: November 7, 1898

Note: L. Ernest Payne purchases the 60 acre tract for $2,500.

Reference: Liber JFF 8, Folio 429
Grantee: Lucy C. Leigh Parsons
Grantor: John Parsons

Date: December 11, 1885

Reference: Liber JFF 8, Folio 413

Grantee: John Parsons

Grantor: Joseph H. Key, trustee

Date: December 3, 1885

Note: As aresult of a court case concerning James T. Parsons (assignee of S. A. Bond) vs G.
Maddox, Susan R. Maddox, John Parsons, and Sallie King, the land is sold to John Parsons for
$3750. (Circuit Court Case 266 N. E.)
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SM-540, The Parsons/Drury/Saunders House
St. Mary's County
8.2 Significance

Reference: Liber JAC 1, Folio 395

Grantee: Susan R. Maddox

Grantor: H. G. S. Key, Maria L. Key, Benjamin G. Harris, and Martha E. Harris

Date: August 23, 1865

Note: This deed notes the 60 acre "Race Track" and "Part of Brooklyn," but also includes another
400+ acre tract called Hawley's Manor. The two tracts were purchased for a total of $9000. This
property was originally purchased by G. Fred Maddox from B. G. Harris, but a date and deed
reference for this transaction is not mentioned.



SM-540, The Parsons/Drury/Saunders House

St. Mary's County
8.3 Significance
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1928 Sanborn Insurance Company map showing the Drury/Saunders house and the store once
located immediately to the south of the dwelling. The store apparently sold general merchandise
and was at one time a joint operation between the Drury and Saunders families.
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SM-540

Drury-Saunders House

22915 Hollywood Road (MD 245), Leonardtown
Sanborn Map 1928, Sheet 3
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SM-540

Drury-Saunders House

22915 Hollywood Road (MD 245), Leonardtown

Leonardtown quad 1963 (Photorewsed 1984, Bathy et [y ad@ed 1982)
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